
 

 

 
Thursday, August 24, 2023 

9:00 am – 12:00 pm 
CDEC Office: 710 South Ash Street Denver, CO 80246 

Google Hangouts: https://meet.google.com/xzy-mmob-gqs  
Or by phone: 732-639-1054 PIN: 201 587 780# 

Meeting Materials 
ECLC Strategic Plan and Work Plan 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

Meeting Objectives:  
● Approve the June 22, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
● Consider methods to advance the goals of the ECLC Strategic Plan 
● Vote on the endorsement of the refreshed Early Childhood Colorado Framework 
● Learn about the Statewide Needs Assessment findings and provide feedback on the Statewide 

Comprehensive Strategic Plan 
● Provide feedback to inform the completion of the Comprehensive Workforce Plan 
● Hear updates about the state of Early Childhood Councils and the work of ECCLA 
● Learn about the current campaign for Proposition ii and consider ways to support 
● Hear comments from the Early Childhood Community 

 
 
8:30-9:00 Commissioners Breakfast (coffee and light breakfast provided for Commissioners) 

9:00-9:10  Welcome and Introductions  

● New Co-Chair: Adeeb Khan 
● ACTION: Approve the June 22, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

9:10-9:25 Universal Preschool Update (Dawn Odean, CDEC) 

9:25-9:35 ECLC Strategic Plan Updates and Next Steps (ECLC Co-Chairs) 

● Type of Agenda Item: Discussion 

9:35-10:00 Early Childhood Colorado Framework Refresh Endorsement (Heather Craiglow and Maria 
Tarajano Rodman, ECLC, and Nicole Sharpe and Leila Sammander, School Readiness 
Consulting) 

● Type of Agenda Item: Official Vote Needed 
● ECLC Function: Alignment 
● Strategic Plan A 1.3 
● Pre-Work: Review newest draft of Framework (will be emailed Tuesday, 8/22) 

https://meet.google.com/xzy-mmob-gqs
http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/eclc-meeting-information
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5679be9605f8e24bd8be467a/t/64de6ea094266970ed776209/1692298913330/Final+Draft+-+ECLC+2-3+Year+Work+Plan+-+August+2023.docx.pdf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/12KVnF86fDLCfS9BKav6buAo2JM1urKnJ/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=114586639969727687661&rtpof=true&sd=true


 

 

10:00-10:45 Statewide Needs Assessment and Comprehensive Strategic Plan (Emily Johnson, Colorado 
Health Institute and Tamilah Richardson and Rebecca Klein, Start Early) 

● Type of Agenda Item: Feedback Needed 
● ECLC Function: Alignment and Advocacy 
● Strategic Plan A 1.3 

10:45-10:55 Break 

10:55-11:05 Public Comment and Commissioner Updates 

11:05-11:25 Comprehensive Workforce Plan Update (Kacee Miller, Angela Rothermel, Tanya Weinberg, 
Early Milestones) 

● Type of Agenda Item: Feedback Needed 
● ECLC Function: Alignment and Advocacy 
● Strategic Plan A 2.1.1  

11:25-11:40  ECCLA Presentation (Maeghan Lokteff, ECCLA) 

● Type of Agenda Item: Informational 
● ECLC Function: Alignment 
● Strategic Plan A 1.1 

11:40-11:55 Proposition ii Update (Jake Williams, Healthier Colorado) 

● Type of Agenda Item: Informational 
● ECLC Function: Advocacy 
● Strategic Plan S 1.4 

11:55-12:00 Next Steps and Final Thoughts  

12:00 pm Adjourn 

 
ECLC 2023 Meeting Schedule

● February 23, 2023 
● April 27, 2023 
● June 22, 2023 

● August 24, 2023 
● October 26, 2023 
● December 21, 2023

 
Note: Any presentation requested by the ECLC does not constitute or imply an endorsement of the product, 
process, service or organization by the ECLC.    

 
The next ECLC Meeting will be held virtually on October 26, 2023 from 9:00am to 12:00 pm. 

For information about future meeting dates, times and locations, visit www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org. 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/12KVnF86fDLCfS9BKav6buAo2JM1urKnJ/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=114586639969727687661&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://docs.google.com/document/d/12KVnF86fDLCfS9BKav6buAo2JM1urKnJ/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=114586639969727687661&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://docs.google.com/document/d/12KVnF86fDLCfS9BKav6buAo2JM1urKnJ/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=114586639969727687661&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://docs.google.com/document/d/12KVnF86fDLCfS9BKav6buAo2JM1urKnJ/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=114586639969727687661&rtpof=true&sd=true
http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/


 
 

Early Childhood Leadership Commission 

 June 2022, 2023 ~ 9:00am – 12:00pm 
 

MINUTES 

 
 
 Meeting Objectives: 

● Approve the April 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
● Learn about recommendations for aligning CCCAP and UPK funding 
● Learn about CDEC’s process for developing policy and legislative priorities 
● Provide feedback on the recommended changes to the Early Childhood Colorado Framework 
● Hear updates on current ECLC projects and consider strategies for alignment 
● Learn about early childhood efforts at state agencies and identify opportunities for collaboration 
● Hear comments from the Early Childhood Community 

 
Attendees: Happy Haynes, Floyd Cobb, Heather Craiglow, Jacob Williams, Jasmin Ramirez, Leslie Nichols, 
Lisa Roy, Lucinda Burns, Nicole Riehl, Pamela Harris, Rachel Hutson, Robert Werthwein, Sue Renner, Susan 
Steele, Whitney LeBoeuf 
 
Welcome and Introductions  
Sue Renner called the meeting to order at 9:04. She asked for a motion to approve the April 27, 2023 
meeting minutes. Whitney Lebouf motioned to approve the minutes as drafted, Jake Williams seconded, and 
the minutes were approved unanimously. 
 
Colorado Department of Early Childhood Updates (Lisa Roy, Executive Director, CDEC) and Universal 
Preschool Program Updates (Dawn Odean, CDEC) 

Dawn Odean explained that UPK providers will begin receiving payment in August based on the enrollment 
entered in Bridgecare. Payments will be made monthly and be based on enrollment adjustments. A 
commissioner asked if it will be an attendance based payment, and Dawn responded that it is based on 
enrollment rather than attendance. CDEC is working to determine funding based on what providers are 
offering, the number of children enrolled, qualifying factors, and funding available. Providers and families, 
including families who will qualify for additional hours, should know about how much funding they will 
receive by mid-July. They are also working on creating guidelines for blending and braiding funding with 
CCCAP and Head Start. Dawn also provided an update on the matching process, which is currently in round 
three. They are planning to move to a rolling basis soon. She also shared data on the first two rounds of 
matching: over 27,000 families have matched with 90% matched to a chosen provider. The program will 
result in $165.7 million in savings for families during the first year.  
 
A commissioner asked what is happening with the 10% of families who have not been matched yet. Dawn 
explained that there are several reasons for this, including duplicate applications, applications from families 
who have moved, families who signed up for programs that are no longer available. They are working with 
LCOs to reach out to any families who still need support with matching. Commissioners also asked how many 
providers are signed up, if the number of families aligns with expectations, and about county by county 
data. Dawn responded that we have nearly 2000 providers; that they expected around 50% of families to 
participate in the program during the first year, and they think they will surpass that by Fall; and they are 
working to analyze data by area and ensure that there are enough slots for families who may sign up in July 
and August.  
 
Next, Mary Alice Cohen provided an overview of CDEC’s newly released strategic plan. She shared the 
mission and vision of the Department, as well as the values. She also shared the seven goals included in the 
strategic plan, which include three goals describing the work CDEC must accomplish to achieve its mission 



 
   
 
  
and four foundational goals that describe the work that CDEC must do in order to achieve the mission-driven 
goals. Commissioners asked if the plan was set or if it will evolve over time and suggested changing goal six 
from focusing on data to focusing on evidence. Mary Alice and Dr. Roy responded that it is a living 
document, and they are open to adjusting that language. 
  
Colorado Child Care Assistance Program / Universal Preschool Program Alignment (Jesse Burne and 
Dawn Odean) 

Jesse Burne, Division of Early Learning Access and Quality Director, Colorado Department of Education, 
started by sharing definitions of blending funds and stacking/layering funds. He then explained the statutory 
and operational misalignment between UPK and CCCAP that CDEC. A work group was started to create 
opportunities for the discussions and joint problem solving between stakeholders and CDEC staff. Currently, 
the group is developing short and long term strategies for CCCAP and UPK alignment, as well as creating 
communication materials and hosting town halls with the counties. They plan to create a Guidance Tool Kit 
to provide short-term solutions which will be released in mid- to late-July. The work group is also 
considering long-term solutions, which may include rule or legislative strategies. Members of the work group 
include community advocates, county directors, CCCAP and UPK staff, and Federal partners. The work group 
started in March and has been meeting bi-weekly. Meetings are scheduled to continue well into September.  
 
The work group has developed short term tasks and solutions to address the misalignment that will be 
implemented over the next 12 months. Counties will continue to conduct business as usual. However, there 
is going to be a transition period where the two funding streams might be blended resulting in child care 
providers receiving funds from both funding sources during the same time period. In an effort to work 
toward stacking, rather than blending, CDEC is in the process of updating the CCCAP application and 
redetermination forms to collect information on dually enrolled children and to simplify the application and 
form, which will be released through an operational memo and through CHATS. A commissioner asked why 
they want to move toward stacking. Jesse explained that the work group determined this by considering 
possible strategies and looking at what other states are doing. Stacking of funds will allow for the funding 
streams to be tracked separately. Another short term task is to support the creation of reports that 
integrate the UPK platform Bridgecare and the CCCAP program CHATS. Counties need these report to 
identify dually enrolled children and support their care needs. They will also provide training for counties, 
LCOs, and providers so that they are aware of how to pursue these strategies, identify needs, and align both 
UPK and CCCAP on behalf of dually enrolled children. In response to concern from the counties, the work 
group has also made determinations about the timing and order of the funding streams. The work group 
determined that UPK funds for part time enrollment would be first in toward the total cost of service 
needed. If additional UPK funds are available, qualifying children will be awarded additional funds. Then, 
CCCAP funds will be stacked on top of that.  
 
The work group is also considering long term solutions, which can include policies and regulations to help 
align the two programs. There may need to be rule revisions to support alignment. They may also change 
payment practices, data sharing, and administrative and technology integration. They will continue to work 
with stakeholders to address their concerns, plan long term solutions, and provide training.  
 
Commissioners raised concerns that we continue to work on simplifying the system and making it family 
friendly and that we may need to take more time to do this. Jesse responded that they are working toward 
a smoother, more simplified process but that they must work within federal regulations. The long term goals 
will simplify the process but it may take legislative action to do so. However, they also must have solutions 
that will work by the time UPK starts. Commissioners asked about the ideal state that we are working 
toward, especially in regard to family and provider experience and that we keep the true cost of care in 
mind when working on payment models. Jesse confirmed that they have a definition of true cost of care 
that they are working with. They are open to surveying families on their experience with the funding 
systems. Commissioners suggested changing the language of long-term goals and strategies to near term to 



 
   
 
  
express that they are working on these solutions as quickly as possible and to consider how the funding 
solutions can align with the goals of raising compensation for the workforce.  
CDEC Policy and Legislative Updates (Grace Eckel, CDEC) 

Grace Eckel, Policy and Legislative Director at CDEC, explained the role of the Policy and Legislative Unit to 
advance policy, legislative, and fiscal initiatives that help achieve the Mission and Vision of CDEC. The unit 
operates in a cycle in alignment with the state legislative process. They are currently developing the 
Departments budget and legislative priorities. In July through November, they will work with the Governor's 
office to develop the Governor’s budget request and legislative agenda, which is a confidential process. 
After that, they will work to advance priority legislation and track legislation related to early childhood 
during the session. After the session, they support program teams with implementation and advance 
rulemaking. 
  
They are currently in the Budget and Legislative planning process for 2024-25. As part of this process, they 
met with more than 100 stakeholders. The process revealed consistent themes including workforce, infant-
toddler care, embedding child care in affordable housing, user friendly data and technology, language 
justice, and universal preschool implementation. These themes inform the current work to develop budget 
and legislative concepts for submission to the Governor. The team looks forward to being able to come back 
in early November to share out what ultimately was included in the Governor's budget package. 
 
Early Childhood Colorado Framework Refresh Review and Feedback (Leila Sammander and Nicole 
Sharpe, School Readiness Consulting) 

Leila Sammander, School Readiness Consulting, explained the current status of the Framework refresh, 
which has included stakeholder engagement that reached over 600 stakeholders and a literature review, and 
are now ready to share the recommendations for an updated Framework.  
 
Based on stakeholder feedback and a review of other state plans, they are recommending the following 
shifts: be clear about the purpose and audience; make the Framework highly graphic and accessible in 
multiples languages, formats, and platforms; highlight the importance of Early Childhood as grounding; keep 
vision clear, brief, and consistent; elevate clear set of foundational values for guiding the system; expand 
and better define core components; show interconnectedness and multitude of Early Childhood supports; 
update outcomes to ensure they reflect recent priorities of families and communities; embed equity as part 
of all actions and outcomes; and emphasize importance of coordination and alignment. Possibilities for the 
future include creating enhanced tools to support implementation; creating metrics aligned to the 
framework; and creating clear ownership for the Framework to create accountability and encourage use.  
 
Susan Steele asked Commissions to consider whether the ECLC wants to support this expanded Framework. 
Heather Craiglow, who served as a co-chair on the Steering Committee for this work, emphasized that this 
work was done in partnership with many stakeholders who asked for these expanded definitions. 
Commissioners discussed the ECLC’s role in advancing the Framework. Commissioners that it provides the 
Commission with a high level expression of our values; that they like that it provides definitions and lists the 
audience; and they like the Logic Model approach. Susan asked if it is clear enough that the Framework is 
centered on families. Heather Craiglow commented that this was a big piece of the conversation in creating 
the Framework and that the group wants the new Framework to better reflect family needs. She also 
pointed out that there was a greater effort to align the Framework with other state agencies and pointed 
out that we have added Economic Support as a domain. Commissioners discussed accountability for the 
Framework and metrics to measure success; they suggested that we use limited metrics and data that is 
already available; that it is the ECLC’s role to make progress toward goals public; and that the Framework 
should include a definition for shared accountability. A commissioner suggested using the term well-being 
when describing health. Commissioners commented that the plan will be useful for common goal setting and 
as a tool for partners to use to consider how they are contributing and holding themselves accountable to 
shared goals. 
 



 
   
 
  
Leila Sammander encouraged Commissioners to fill out a survey with more detailed feedback. SRC will 
complete continued engagement and incorporate feedback. At the August meeting, they will share final 
revisions and put it up for a vote to endorse.  
 

State Agency Updates Questions & Answer (Susan Steele, ECLC co-chair) 

Written state agency updates were shared. Commissioners can email the state agency representatives with 
questions.  
 
Public Comment and Commissioner Updates 

● There were no public comments.  
 
Appreciation for Outgoing ECLC Member and Early Childhood Champions 

The ECLC honored the following Early Childhood Champions: 
● Michael Cooke for her service as the Transition Director of the new Department since 2022. She 

worked to guide the transition and to establish the new UPK program.  
● Dr. Katy Anthes for her seven years of service as the Commissioner of Education and particularly for 

her support of the establishment of the Department of Early Childhood.  
● Outgoing Commissioner Sondra Ranum for her service to the ECLC as the representative of CDHE.  

 
ECLC Project Updates (Shannon Wilson, ECLC Administrator) 

Shannon Wilson provided updates on ECLC Projects:  
● The 2022 annual report will be released soon. A draft of the report will be forwarded to commissions 

and contributors for review. Once the final version is released, Commissioners should share it with 
their networks.  

● The ECLC Strategic Plan was finalized in April. It has now been shared with Subcommittees and 
Working Groups and will be used for charter revisions. While sharing with stakeholders, it was 
pointed out that some of the language was not inclusive of all aspects of the early childhood system.  

○ Shannon proposed changing “early childhood care and education” to “early childhood 
supports and services.” Commissioners proposed changing to “early childhood care, 
education, and supports.” The change was accepted with an understanding that the language 
will be revisited after the Early Childhood Colorado Framework is completed.  

● An effort to update and rebrand the Comprehensive Statewide Strategic Plan (formerly Colorado 
Shines Brighter) has begun. The new plan will respond to this year’s statewide needs assessment and 
will be aligned with the refreshed Early Childhood Colorado Framework. The Commission will vote to 
endorse the plan in December. Members who are interested in serving on the Working Group can 
email Shannon. 

● ECLC is also advising on the update of the Workforce 2020 plan in conjunction with Early Milestones 
and the CDEC Workforce team. Listening sessions and Stakeholder Feedback sessions have been 
completed, and the plan is now being drafted. The ECLC will vote to endorse this plan in December. 
Commissioners can contact Kacee Miller or Tanya Weinberg from Early Milestones with questions. 

 

Co-Chairs’ Next Steps and Final Thoughts 
Susan Steele thanked everyone for attending and participating. The next meeting will be held in person, 
August 24, 2023. The meeting was adjourned at 11: 58 pm.  

 
 
Note: Any presentation requested by the ECLC does not constitute or imply an endorsement of the product, 
process, service, or organization by the ECLC. 
 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/10YmguiWlyZ7DUNSDj6iLxeTUgJfpQKn9PjJZzFOOBog/edit


Thank you for joining! We will begin shortly.  

● Please remember to mute your computer or phone when not speaking ● 

● We will be recording the meeting ●

● All materials can be found at: www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/eclc-meeting-information ●

August 24, 2023
9:00 am – 12:00 pm

CDEC Office and Google Meet

In-Person WiFi: publicwifi



Meeting Logistics
In-person attendees

• If logged into Google, mute 
yourself and your computer

• The OWL will track your voice
• Be prepared to access digital 

documents throughout the 
meeting

• Try to limit side conversations or 
talking at the same time as 
someone else

Virtual attendees
• Keep microphone muted until 
• speaking
• Turn camera on when speaking 

(you are welcome to leave 
camera on the full time)

• For questions or comments
 Use the hand raise feature 
 Unmute
 Type in chat



Welcome, Introductions & Approve Minutes



Meeting Objectives
• Approve the June 22, 2023 Meeting Minutes
• Consider methods to advance the goals of the ECLC Strategic Plan
• Vote on the endorsement of the refreshed Early Childhood Colorado 

Framework
• Learn about the Statewide Needs Assessment findings and provide feedback 

on the Statewide Comprehensive Strategic Plan
• Provide feedback to inform the completion of the Comprehensive Workforce 

Plan
• Hear updates about the state of Early Childhood Councils and the work of 

ECCLA
• Learn about the current campaign for Proposition ii and consider ways to 

support
• Hear comments from the Early Childhood Community



Universal Preschool Updates
Dawn Odean, CDEC



ECLC Strategic Plan Updates and Next Step



Guiding Principles & Functions 
From its unique position as the federally authorized 

state advisory council on early childhood…. 

Strategies
…the ECLC focuses its time, energy, and resources 
to influence systems and policy advancements……

Results
…so that Colorado achieves its vision for early 

childhood.  

10-Year Strategic Plan 
Vision: All children are valued, healthy and thriving

Alignment Advocacy AccountabilityAlignment Advocacy Accountability

• Center family experience, satisfaction, and need, ensuring responsive and 
accessible service delivery

• Create a public forum to examine challenges and barriers to an equitable, 
comprehensive early childhood system and identify creative solutions 

• Request data needed from public and private partners to inform strategic 
policy recommendations

• Develop and promote innovative policy change to strengthen Colorado’s 
statewide mixed delivery system, increasing access to affordable, quality care 

• Monitor and provide feedback on state agency strategic plans and priorities to 
promote alignment, mutual reinforcement, and interagency partnerships 

• Develop policy strategies for stronger recruitment and retention, increasing 
workforce diversity across all leadership levels

• Champion strategies to enhance early childhood workforce compensation 
across public and private settings   

• Advocate for the public and private funding needed to fully implement 
Colorado’s Comprehensive Early Childhood Workforce Plan

• Regularly review workforce data to advise on new opportunities and any 
course corrections

• Advocate for and monitor progress on a multi-agency integrated early 
childhood data system 

• Inform and support the use of a data-driven evaluation and learning approach 
so state initiatives are designed with accountability measures and a plan to 
evaluate impact 

• Promote collaborative, interagency, multi-year fiscal planning for early 
childhood

• Set the direction for fiscal policies and decisions that prioritize children and 
families across public and private systems

Colorado is successful in 
administering a system of 
comprehensive early childhood 
care, education, and supports so 
that all families can easily identify, 
navigate and access services for 
their children.

Colorado recruits, retains, and 
equitably compensates a diverse 
and qualified early childhood 
workforce that provides quality 
care, education, and supports to 
children and their families.

Colorado’s early childhood system 
has the data needed to make 
evidence-based decisions and the 
funding resources to put best 
practices and plans into place, so 
all communities have what is 
needed to best support children 
and families. 

• Family, provider, and community voice
• Federal, state and local public 

investments

• State agency plans, goals and 
budgets 

• National best practices

• State early childhood plans and 
roadmaps

• Private investments

• Service and program data
• Workforce data

Levers of Change:  The ECLC aims to increase access to data, enhance financing, and inform policies by utilizing a variety of public and private resources, such as:



See full 
Work Plan 

Here 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/12KVnF86fDLCfS9BKav6buAo2JM1urKnJ/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=114586639969727687661&rtpof=true&sd=true


Strategic Plan and Subcommittees 

• Review this document
• Are the committees are 

appropriately assigned?
• Could we be better 

accomplish our goals with 
different subcommittees?

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1flfQQRQ1z72WCiZLSVQ1UjqvFsVwkCoeS4U7Przq9qk/edit?usp=sharing


Communication Subcommittee

• Based on the Strategic Plan, we will be sunsetting 
the Communications subcommittee

• Subcommittees should consider how to incorporate 
communications into their work

Thank you to everyone who has served on the 
Communications Subcommittee! 



Next Steps

• Subcommittees will be reviewing and proposing 
changes to their charters

• At the October meeting, Commissioners will:
– Approve the new charters
– Decide on the need for new Subcommittees



Early Childhood Colorado Framework Refresh Endorsement
Heather Craiglow and Maria Tarajano Rodman, ECLC

Nicole Sharpe, School Readiness Consulting





















Statewide Needs Assessment and Comprehensive Strategic Plan 
Emily Johnson, Colorado Health Institute

Tamilah Richardson and Rebecca Klein, Start Early



Colorado B-5
Needs Assessment
Initial Findings Overview

August 24, 2023



Research Questions
1. How available are early childhood programs in Colorado, and how does 

this vary across select family contexts?
2. What are barriers to early childhood program availability and options to 

address them?
3. What is the general quality of early childhood programs in Colorado, 

and how does this vary across select family contexts?
4. What are barriers to early childhood program quality and options to 

address them?
5. How can early childhood programs remain sustainable, both in general 

and in light of the impact of COVID-19?
6. What are the most effective methods for engaging families in the early 

childhood system, and how does this vary across select family 
contexts?

7. What barriers and opportunities are there for better recruitment and 
retention of the early childhood workforce?

24



Early Childhood System
• Efforts to foster well-being such as Early Childhood Mental Health 

Consultation and The Incredible Years

• Family strengthening efforts such as Family Resource Centers, 
HealthySteps for Young Children, Home Instruction for Parents of 
Preschool Youngsters, Nurse-Family Partnership, Parents as Teachers, 
Promoting Safe and Stable Families, SafeCare Colorado, and Child First  

• Early care and education programs such as licensed child care, 
informal early care and education, Colorado Shines, Head Start, Colorado 
Child Care Assistance Program, Early Childhood At-Risk Enhancement, 
the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act Part B preschool special 
education, and Universal Preschool Colorado

• Early Intervention Colorado 

25



Initial Findings



Select Family Contexts

Cultural and linguistic considerations. Families of different 
cultural backgrounds, families and children whose primary 
language is not English, immigrant families.

Behavioral and physical health considerations. Children 
with special health needs, children with behavioral or 
social-emotional needs.

Resource considerations. Families in rural areas, families in 
high poverty areas or other underserved family and child 
populations, families experiencing homelessness.

Families with infants and toddlers.



• Families need child care at all hours.

• Many child care providers are not participating in UPK, yet those that are 
hold the majority of preschool-aged licensed capacity.

• The greatest need for child care is among families with infants and 
toddlers.

• The early childhood system does not adequately meet the needs of 
families that prefer or only speak a language other than English or 
Spanish.

• The early childhood system is not adequately meeting the needs of 
families with children with special health needs; however, more data are 
needed to understand the extent of this problem.

Availability



• Most child care providers do not participate in Colorado 
Shines.

• Families view quality as important, but they do not use 
quality ratings to make decisions about child care.

• Early childhood programming should focus on more 
than just ‘‘school-readiness’’ and emphasize a 
whole-child approach.

Quality



• Programs across the early childhood system need 
more alignment across funding streams and 
opportunities to secure and combine funding.

• Providers spent two-thirds of stabilization grant 
funding on personnel costs, highlighting an ongoing 
need for basic operational funding.

• Informal care providers need additional support and 
funding.

Sustainability



Family Engagement

• Hand-offs within and adjacent to the early childhood 
system are opportunities to increase program 
participation.

• Programs should use two-generation,  whole family 
approach to effectively engage families.

• Services need to use tailored approaches to reach 
families facing language and cultural barriers.



Workforce
• Across the system, the early childhood workforce 

needs increased compensation and benefits

• The early childhood workforce needs more funding 
and time to dedicate to professional development

• Trainings should equip the early childhood workforce 
to provide trauma-informed, culturally-responsive 
care to all children



 Initial Findings: Discussion



8/24/23

Colorado Early 
Childhood System 
Strategic Planning

Early Childhood Leadership Commission Meeting



Agenda

• Introduction
• Strategic plan process overview and discussion of alignment with Early Childhood 

Colorado Framework
• Brainstorming strategies based on initial Needs Assessment findings
• Closing/Next Steps

35



Who We Are: Champions of Early Childhood

36



Purpose of Updating Strategic Plan
• To reflect progress that has been made since the original drafting of 

the strategic plan
• To build on new needs assessment
• To better integrate equity in the strategic plan
• To expand the scope from birth-to-five to prenatal-to-five and to include 

other sectors beyond but related to early care and education
• To integrate goals and strategies from the broad array of CO plans 

related to early childhood that currently exist – the “plan of plans” - and to 
align with the new Early Childhood Colorado framework

37



Overview of Strategy Development Process

38

Gather 
Information

July-Sept.

Update Goals 
& Strategies

August-October

Finalize & 
Add Detail

November-January

Package, 
Endorse, 
Promote

January-February

Note: This timeline may shift. The timing of activities and engagement of 
various groups should be considered tentative.



Overview of Strategy Development Process: Phase 1

39

Gather 
Information

Jul – Sept.

Activities
• Map out strategy development process 

• Convene Strategic Planning Working Group 

• Review needs assessment, evaluation, new EC system framework, etc.

• Review relevant early childhood strategic plans and draft themes 

document

• Engage partners

o Gather information about progress of current strategies and ideas 

for new ones

o Facilitate partner discussions/collect direct feedback

o Aggregate and analyze input



Partner Engagement Activities

40

• Community conversations (~12)
o e.g., Family Voice Council, subcommittees of the ECLC, Early Childhood Council 

Leadership Association, etc.

• Focus groups with families and early childhood professionals 
o (8 focus groups with ~10 ppl each, 2 in Spanish, and interpretation for other 

languages)

• Key Informant Interviews (~20)

• Survey to families and professionals to confirm and prioritize emerging ideas and 
strategies (translated into Spanish)



Overview of Strategy Development Process: Phase 2

41

Update 
Goals & 

Strategies
Aug. - October

Activities 
• Draft Strategic Plan At-A-Glance goals, objectives, strategies

• Draft Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

• Work with graphic designer on refreshed Strategic Plan title, tagline, brand 

colors/design elements for Strategic Plan At-A-Glance and Report



Overview of Strategy Development Process: Phase 3

Note: This timeline may shift. The timing of activities and engagement of 
various groups should be considered tentative. 42

Finalize & 
Add Detail

Nov. – Jan.

Activities 
• Incorporate ECLC, FVC, CDEC leaders, community and other feedback 

into draft Strategic Plan At-A-Glance

• Confirm Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Strategic Plan and process 

for managing progress on strategic plan using KPIs

• Confirm branding

• Draft Strategic Plan Report (includes description of process, rationale)



Overview of Strategy Development Process: Phase 4

Note: This timeline may shift. The timing of activities and engagement of 
various groups should be considered tentative. 43

Package, 
Endorse, 
Promote

January-February

Activities
• Translate Strategic Plan At-A-Glance and Report into Spanish

• Complete graphic design

• Draft partner register, promotion plan, and promotional deliverables



Touchpoints with the ECLC

44

Review and provide feedback on strategic plan 
process; Discuss ideas for new Strategic Plan 
plan based on Needs Assessment findings

August meeting

Review draft of Strategic Plan At-A-Glance and 
provide feedback; discuss branding ideas

October meeting

Review and provide feedback on later draft of 
Strategic Plan At-A-Glance draft (with 
feedback from ECLC, CDEC, Community, and 
others incorporated), branding and KPIs

December Meeting

Final Endorsement of the designed version of 
Strategic Plan At-A-Glance and Strategic plan 
report 

February meeting



Strategic Planning Process Reflections

What are your thoughts and suggestions for Colorado’s strategic planning 
process?

• Are there any important considerations to note and discuss?

• Thoughts on aligning the Strategic Plan to the Early Childhood Colorado 
Framework?

45



Strategy Ideas

• What are your ideas to strengthen the CO Early Childhood System and to 
address the initial Needs Assessment findings that you heard about today?
▪ Availability
▪ Quality
▪ Sustainability
▪ Family Engagement
▪ Workforce

• Please share your ideas aloud, in chat or in the JamBoard!

46

https://jamboard.google.com/d/1qU7hjau8Fy8KtbMOYuTd1KWef3HyNHIpmzOBrK7V_zY/edit?usp=sharing


Current Strategy Updates

• We are also gathering input about:
o the status of current CO Shines Brighter Strategies 

▪ (not yet started, in progress, completed, discontinued)

o whether to carry them forward into the new comprehensive CO Early 
Childhood System Strategic Plan 
▪ (remove from new plan, keep as is, keep with light changes, major changes are needed)

o recommendations for updating, changing or adding to the strategy 
▪ (specific language or wording changes)

You may share your knowledge and recommendations in this Google sheet!

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1SfskJkTjwRdWPHo1MApp8QlBRkZ7KtepHq5MqEHL7oM/edit?usp=sharing


Closing/Next Steps

• Continue to share your feedback and ideas on the Jamboard
• Contribute your thoughts and recommendations on the current CO Shines 

Brighter Strategies in the Google sheet
• Reach out to us directly with comments, questions, or other contributions! 
• Please support our partner engagement efforts
• Look forward to draft Strategic Plan At-A-Glance in October!

48

https://jamboard.google.com/d/1qU7hjau8Fy8KtbMOYuTd1KWef3HyNHIpmzOBrK7V_zY/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1SfskJkTjwRdWPHo1MApp8QlBRkZ7KtepHq5MqEHL7oM/edit?usp=sharing


Every child has equitable 
opportunity to reach their full 
potential to thrive in school 
and in life.

StartEarly.org/ProfessionalDevelopment

Find startearlyorg on:

rklein@startearly.org

trichardson@startearly.org

sbeilmann@startearly.org

kfisher@startearly.org

StartEarly.org/Consulting



Break Time! 
Back in 10 minutes…



Public Comment and Commissioner Updates



Comprehensive Workforce Plan Update 
Kacee Miller, Angela Rothermel, Tanya Weinberg, Early Milestones



 





 



 



 



 



 



ECCLA Presentation
Maegan Lokteff, ECCLA 





Early Childhood Councils were originally in 
statute in HB 07-1062, and now in HB 
22-1295, with the purpose to improve and 
sustain the availability, accessibility, 
capacity, and quality of early childhood 
services for children and families 
throughout the state.

Early Childhood Councils serve as the hub 
for local early childhood services, 
“connecting the dots” between agencies 
and service providers, coordinating needs 
assessments and strategic plans to ensure 
services meet local needs, supporting 
professionals and families, and bringing 
resources to their communities. 





● 17 Early Childhood Councils are also 
designated Child Care Resource and Referral 
Catchments and work closely with the Early 
Childhood Council Counterparts to deliver 
services. 

● 27 Early Childhood Councils are also 
designated Local Coordinating Organizations, 
with two Early Childhood Councils supporting 
LCO work in 6 Early Childhood Catchment 
areas. 

● One Early Childhood Council is also a 
designated Family Resource Center by FRCA, 
and two serve as Family Resource Centers in 
their communities. 

● 12 Early Childhood Councils have contracts or 
receive other funding to provide Early 
Childhood Mental Health Consulting in their 
catchment area







Community Investments in Early Childhood Councils 
Leveraged for their Systems in FY 2022

Total = $21,298,824



Side-By-Side Comparison of ECCs and LCOs





Proposition ii Update 
Jake Williams, Healthier Colorado





BACKGROUND
In 2020, Colorado’s legislature 
referred Proposition EE to the 
voters via HB20-1427 with a 

bipartisan vote. In November 
2020, Colorado voters 

overwhelmingly approved 
Proposition EE, which did the 

following:   

Increased existing taxes on 
tobacco and instituted a new tax 
on other nicotine products, 
generating approximately $275 
million per year for public health 
and education priorities 

Invested in K-12 readiness by 
providing all Colorado kids with 
access to preschool in the year 
before kindergarten 

Ensured that the revenue funded tobacco 
and nicotine cessation initiatives and a 
new statewide, voluntary universal 
preschool program that serves Colorado 
kids through community and school 
district-run programs 

Dedicated funding to affordable 
housing and rural, public 
schools 



THE PROBLEM
Proposition EE is bringing in more revenue than was 
estimated in the Blue Book revenue analysis in 2020. 

Colorado’s Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights (TABOR) requires that 
voters approve the state’s retention of the excess revenue. 

If Proposition ii doesn’t pass, Colorado will have to 
immediately refund the $23.65 million to tobacco 

wholesalers and distributors, and then reduce the tax rate 
going forward. This will result in less money to spend on 

universal preschool. 
   



+24KTHE SOLUTION
By voting YES on Prop ii, we can respect the 
voters' intent and retain the $23.65 million for 
universal preschool. 

By voting YES, Proposition ii will allow 
approximately 5,100 more children access to 
additional preschool programs per year. 

Additionally, studies have shown that higher 
prices on tobacco and nicotine products lead to 
less usage amongst youth and young adults. 

By retaining these funds, we can keep these 
harmful products out of the hands of youth 
across the state of Colorado. 



WHAT WILL $23.65M DO? 
It will extend additional hours to more children, 
especially children with qualifying factors that 

need it the most, which include: 
Families with a household 
income below 270% of the 

2023 Federal Policy 
Guidelines 

Students with an 
Individualized Education 

Plan

Families experiencing 
homelessness 

Students who are dual 
language learners 

Students in foster or 
kinship care 



WHAT CAN YOU DO? 

Endorse Network 
Comms

Story
Telling

More at 
https://www.preschoolforallcoloradans.com

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLScIIU0u_ZqKedY9k1rgyk4PwFmwgGigbAmP7c7wjyxOcywEyA/viewform


Next Steps and Final Thoughts



Next Meeting:

October 26, 2023
9:00 am - 12:00 pm

Virtual

Thank you!



ECLC State Agency and Organizational Updates

August 24, 2023

Colorado Department of Early Childhood

New Deputy Director

CDEC welcomed Stephanie Beasley as the new Deputy Executive Director for the

Department on August 7.

Stephanie began her career providing direct services to children and families involved

in child welfare. She served in many roles in child welfare in Indiana, including

program and policy oversight. She served as the Director of the Indianapolis office and

ultimately as Deputy Director of Field Operations leading child welfare services in all

92 counties. After leaving the Department of Child Services, Stephanie served as the

VP of Statewide Outreach for Indiana Youth Institute providing community

development and capacity building services to youth serving organizations in Indiana.

She has served as a consultant and evaluator for multiple programs in her career.

Her focus remained on children and families and individuals experiencing crisis,

mental health, or addictive disease. Stephanie served as the Chief Operating Officer

for Adult and Child Health providing mental health and addictive disease services as

well as housing, foster care, and youth development services in central Indiana. In

2020 Stephanie was appointed as the Director of Children and Family Services in

Nebraska by then Governor, Pete Ricketts. In that role she led child support

enforcement, child welfare, adult protective and economic assistance programs for

the state of Nebraska. Currently, she serves as VP of Community Impact for Mile High

United Way overseeing, United For Families, United For Schools and Personal

Investment Enterprise.

CCCAP and UPK Resources

The Division of Early Learning Access and Quality has released a CCCAP and UPK

Comparison Chart and UPK & CCCAP Enrollment Scenarios for Counties.

Colorado Department of Education

Staff at the Colorado Department of Education have been working hard to help

support the transition of our new Commissioner Susana Cordova who began as

commissioner at the end of June. She has spent much of July and August on a

listening tour across the state to gather a deeper understanding of the current

educational needs in Colorado.

Without a regularly scheduled board meeting, July is typically a quiet month at CDE.

During this time staff have continued to provide support to the Colorado Department

of Early Childhood with the transition of universal preschool.

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1fbIsPGkgzTWztZQStOn1Gxmo43i-J-xR/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1fbIsPGkgzTWztZQStOn1Gxmo43i-J-xR/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Sed-8sV--R-JU7Cmn_ZueJ6cKVHZES6d/view?usp=sharing


Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment

Colorado WIC/COWIC (Erin.Kendrick@state.co.us):

● Colorado WIC’s Impact Report for FFY 2022-23 has been released.

● Oct 1 Shift to Hybrid Operations - As the federal COVID-19 public health

emergency has ended, the USDA flexibilities that have allowed Colorado WIC to

provide all services remotely (by phone) are ending on September 30, 2023.

Due to this, starting October 1, 2023, WIC will once again need to gather

participants’ growth measurements (heights and weights) and hemoglobin

levels at certification and recertification appointments. WIC can accept growth

measurements (completed within the last 60 days) and hemoglobin results

taken by a HCP or community health program. If this information is available,

the participant can complete this appt by phone instead of in person.

Immunization Program (Sara.Lopez@state.co.us):

● Heather Roth or Sara Lopez are available to attend a future ECLC meeting to

provide an overview of 2022-23 school and childcare immunization data if

that would be helpful.

● Updates to child care and K-12 immunization tables: the following message

may be shared:

Dear valued partner,

In order to support education and immunizing partners, the Immunization Branch at

the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) provides annual

updates to two resources that school nurses, child care nurse consultants, licensing

specialists, environmental health inspectors, and others may use to determine a

student's up-to-date status for school-required vaccines.

● 2023-2024 immunization table for child care and preschool.

● 2023-2023 immunization table for kindergarten through 12th grade.

CDPHE also developed a tool: Interpreting the use of titers as an acceptable

alternative to some school-required vaccines, which provides guidance for health

care providers and school personnel.

If you have questions, email School and Child Care Nurse Consultant Sara Lopez at

sara.lopez@state.co.us.

mailto:Erin.Kendrick@state.co.us
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YitaKHYI2r3US6W2IIgMICWlDwiTpK2S/view
mailto:Sara.Lopez@state.co.us
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tOqwUchmTS1vq47SU1D1k9rSGg8Amobr/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jqLaGnHIAQgYMsZfAY0YV5hXn9toZMJG/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bzYkiwdV6MusQSWYv8ttByDJGEatcAWh/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bzYkiwdV6MusQSWYv8ttByDJGEatcAWh/view?usp=sharing
mailto:sara.lopez@state.co.us


● The Immunization Program has been receiving requests from school nurses

to provide immunization education and support for UPK families.

Economic Mobility Program (Isabel.Dickson@state.co.us):

● The Department of Early Childhood and the Economic Mobility program in the

Prevention Services Division at CDPHE are excited to announce the job posting

for their new shared FTE focused on family economic well-being. The Economic

Mobility & County Relations Liaison, housed within the State & Community

Partnerships Unit at the Department of Early Childhood, will work in

partnership with CDPHE and Get Ahead Colorado to expand knowledge of and

access to concrete economic supports. The position will embed and align

economic security programs and supports both within CDEC programs and in

partnership with county-level human services and early childhood stakeholders.

Please share with your networks!

Colorado Farm to Child (Britt Martens, brittany.martens@state.co.us):

● Farm to Child Gathering

September 9, 2023, Fort Morgan - Save the Date

Register here

This full day in-person event will include 6 learning sessions, lunch, a travel

stipend, and the opportunity to participate in a Farm to Child Collaborative

meeting. Learning sessions will include Culinary Skills, Farm to Child 101,

Gardening for Child Care, Local Food Regulations and more.

Visit the Farm to Child website to access resources on gardening, nutrition

education, and local food purchasing available in English and Spanish.

To join the Farm to Child Collaborative newsletter and meeting list please click

here.

Environmental Health and Sustainability (Amy.gammel@state.co.us):

We are in the process of hiring staff to support the facilities and local public health

agencies on the western slope. This will include providing inspections and direct

support in the following counties: Pitkin, Rio Blanco, Moffat, Delta*, Montrose*, Ouray,

Dolores, and Montezuma*.

* CDPHE is providing direct service support in these counties temporarily due to

staffing limitations within the local public health agency.

Maternal and Child Health Program (Lyz.Sanders@state.co.us or

Rachel.hutson@state.co.us):

mailto:Isabel.Dickson@state.co.us
https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/colorado/jobs/4164445/economic-mobility-county-relations-liaison
https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/colorado/jobs/4164445/economic-mobility-county-relations-liaison
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLScHW7VVOtrMBwOGSVwByyXTdXnmboZigPyW4JOt8w47jrKJag/viewform?usp=sf_link
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__docs.google.com_forms_d_e_1FAIpQLScVmCyTAbbpe2MZ6R9P5l3b0pdFWMIrtQrsapV3F2QwcJrleQ_viewform&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=BrF2mYU4SVnxsfGDN4Ell4nRKltPbGQGkNKlBxqgulA&m=LrWTVSd8t9KE-XQKaCZ6_jgAgq1AQ_A1_yb5paRtCXPdItO8MjA8maojOu_UTtLA&s=TJBIUKQuOA9aMTyeHgmG4_cf3oVpZ9PQvMaPzq7XX78&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__docs.google.com_forms_d_e_1FAIpQLScVmCyTAbbpe2MZ6R9P5l3b0pdFWMIrtQrsapV3F2QwcJrleQ_viewform&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=BrF2mYU4SVnxsfGDN4Ell4nRKltPbGQGkNKlBxqgulA&m=LrWTVSd8t9KE-XQKaCZ6_jgAgq1AQ_A1_yb5paRtCXPdItO8MjA8maojOu_UTtLA&s=TJBIUKQuOA9aMTyeHgmG4_cf3oVpZ9PQvMaPzq7XX78&e=
mailto:amy.gammel@state.co.us
mailto:Lyz.Sanders@state.co.us
mailto:Rachel.hutson@state.co.us


The MCH program is federally required to conduct a statewide needs assessment of

the maternal and child health population every five years to inform program priority

selection. The next needs assessment will launch in the fall of 2023. Please refer to

this MCH Data to Action Overview for general information about the timeline and

process. More details will be forthcoming, as the details are fleshed out.

Colorado Department of Human Services

The Division of Child Welfare hosted a Townhall on fentanyl. We have seen several

accidental overdoses and child deaths related to parents/family use of the drug and

children’s access to it. Our town halls are recorded and could be watched by anyone

with interest. See a Trend Alert here, and watch the recording here.

The Division of Economic and Workforce Support (DEWS) is collaborating with their

workforce development partners to refer qualified candidates to agencies seeking

support for hiring employees into entry-level childcare positions. If partners are

interested in learning more or are interested in being connected to a workforce

development organization, please contact Ian McMahon at ian.mcmahon@state.co.us.

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NwJz4J5TLb1PmoFBE0_oztVBtDQPraVx/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/171mE3r8qA8kyPoiyZppQnF_WfACnUXM0/edit
https://coloradocwts.com/impacts-of-fentanyl-town-hall-2/

	ECLC Agenda 8.24.23
	Draft ECLC Meeting Minutes 6.22.23
	8.24.23 ECLC PowerPoint .pptx (1)
	ECLC State Agency Updates (1)

